

AGILENT ICF FOR LC

Clarity Control Module

ENG

Code/Rev.: M155/100A Date: 2024-11-13

Phone: +420 251 013 400 clarity@dataapex.com www.dataapex.com DataApex Ltd. Petrzilkova 2583/13 158 00 Prague 5 Czech Republic

Clarity[®], DataApex[®] and $\blacktriangle^{\mathbb{R}}$ are trademarks of DataApex Ltd. Microsoft[®] and WindowsTM are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation.

DataApex reserves the right to make changes to manuals without prior notice. Updated manuals can be downloaded from www.dataapex.com.

Author: MP

Contents

| 1 Agilent ICF for LC | 1 |
|---|----|
| 2 Requirements | 2 |
| 2.1 Software requirements | 2 |
| 2.2 Hardware requirements | 2 |
| 3 Installation procedure | |
| 3.1 Installing Correct Version of Agilent ICF | |
| 3.2 LAN card setting | 4 |
| 3.2.1 Default settings | 5 |
| 3.2.2 Stored Settings | 6 |
| 3.2.3 Bootp Settings | 7 |
| 3.2.4 DHCP Server | 7 |
| 3.3 Description of LAN connector | 8 |
| 3.4 Wiring | 8 |
| 3.5 Clarity Configuration | 9 |
| 3.6 Installation Qualification of Agilent ICF | |
| 4 Using the Agilent ICF | 14 |
| 4.1 Agilent ICF Setup | |
| 4.2 Method Setup | 17 |
| 4.2.1 Method Setup - AS | |
| 4.2.2 Method Setup - LC | |
| 4.2.3 Method Setup - Acquisition | |
| 4.2.4 Method Setup - PDA | |
| 4.2.5 Method Setup - FC | |
| 4.2.6 Method Setup - Advanced | |
| 4.3 Device Monitor | 25 |
| 4.4 Select Vial Location | 27 |
| 5 Troubleshooting | |
| 5.1 Specific Problems | |

To facilitate the orientation in the **Agilent ICF for LC** manual and **Clarity** chromatography station, different fonts are used throughout the manual. Meanings of these fonts are:

Open File (italics) describes the commands and names of fields in **Clarity**, parameters that can be entered into them or a window or dialog name.

WORK1 (capitals) indicates the name of the file and/or directory.

ACTIVE (capital italics) marks the state of the station or its part.

Chromatogram (blue underlined) marks clickable links referring to related chapters.

The bold text is sometimes also used for important parts of the text and the name of the **Clarity** station. Moreover, some sections are written in format other than normal text. These sections are formatted as follows:

| Note: | Notifies the reader of relevant information. |
|----------|---|
| Caution: | Warns the user of possibly dangerous or very important information. |

Marks the problem statement or trouble question.

Description: Presents more detailed information on the problem, describes its causes, etc.

Solution: Marks the response to the question, presents a procedure how to remove it.

1 Agilent ICF for LC

This manual describes the use of the **Agilent ICF for LC** (Instrument Control Framework) with the **Clarity** software ver. **8.1 and later**. The list of ICF versions **Clarity** comes with is available on www.dataapex.com website on ICF control product page.



Fig. 1: Agilent ICF

The **Clarity** chromatography station enables to control various laboratory equipment from **Agilent** using the **Agilent ICF for LC**. It is library developed by **Agilent** which can be run within the **Clarity** Chromatography Station environment. This manual describes the basic use within the **Clarity**.

Thus the **Agilent ICF** dialogs and setup windows are displayed within **Clarity**, the manuals are supplied by the Agilent company both for the instrument and the configuration dialogs of the **ICF**. For the detailed help of the respective controlled instruments and functions of the **Agilent ICF** dialogs, press the *Help* or *F1* button in the displayed dialogs. Remember, that some of the dialogs loaded into the <u>Method</u> <u>Setup</u> window are also part of the **Agilent ICF** library and pressing the F1 key also displays the Agilent ICF for LC **Help** which is not created by **DataApex Ltd**.

For complete list of controlled instruments by the **Agilent ICF** library, see the **Clarity** Controls web-page: www.dataapex.com/controls.

2 Requirements

2.1 Software requirements

Agilent ICF for LC requires Microsoft .NET version 4.8 or higher for correct installation and operation. This version of .NET is already installed on majority of PCs, nonetheless you will be notified during the installation if your PC is missing it - then follow the instructions there. For complete list of .NET requirements, see the .NET Framework System Requirements on Microsoft web page.

Supported operating systems:

- Windows 10 (64 bit)
- Windows 11 (64 bit)

Caution: ELSD driver 1.8 requires Microsoft .NET 3.5.

Note: Before installing **Clarity**, it is recommended that your **Windows** is updated to the latest version.

2.2 Hardware requirements

- The same version of firmware must be installed on all Agilent instruments you want to control by Agilent ICF for LC.
- Version of firmware must be compatible with the Agilent ICF installed with Clarity.
- Minimum firmware version of the modules must be **A06.5x** or higher, recommended firmware is **A07.01** or higher.
- LAN interface installed on PC is required.

For complete list of supported Windows OS, instrument firmware and Agilent ICF for LC, see the Specifications - Agilent Instrument Control Framework (ICF) on Agilent webpage.

Caution: Before you start **Clarity**, ensure there is not any other application or the **Agilent Handheld Controller** active and controlling the **Agilent** instruments.

3 Installation procedure

Agilent ICF for LC is not part of the Clarity Typical installation. To install it, select the Full installation or the Agilent ICF for LC in the Choose Components dialog during the installation of Clarity.

| 🔼 Clarity 9.0.1.19 Setup | | - | | \times |
|---|--|-----------|------------|----------|
| Choose Components Choose which features of Clari | ty you want to install. | | | |
| Check the components you wa install. Click Next to continue. | nt to install and uncheck the component | s you don | 't want to | |
| Select the type of install: | Full | | | ~ |
| Or, select the optional components you wish to install: | Instrument Control Framework Vaglent tG Vaglent tG Vaglent LG Vaglent LC Vaglent LC | k (ICF) | | |
| Space required: 1.3 GB | Position your mouse over a compone description. | nt to see | its | |
| DataApex Installer | | | | |
| | < Back Nex | ct > | Cano | el |

Fig. 2: Custom installation of Clarity

3.1 Installing Correct Version of Agilent ICF

Clarity expects a specific version of Agilent ICF. Because other programs may also be using Agilent ICF, it is possible they've installed a different version than is supported by Clarity. In that case in the installation you will be prompted to reinstall it in order to install correct version. Going forward with this step is crucial for correct functionality of Clarity and Agilent ICF.

This situation may also occur during Clarity update when the new version contains updated ICF version.

Note: This reinstallation of Agilent ICF may cause that other programs using it, may not function properly.



Fig. 3: Installing correct version of Agilent ICF

3.2 LAN card setting

Instruments from **Agilent 1100** series requires to purchase the LAN card since they don't have it preinstalled. In case of **Agilent 1200** series, the system contains preinstalled LAN card and the user needs to configure the TCP/IP network parameters only.

In case you purchased the LAN card separately, there are 3 LAN cards types available from Agilent:

- **G1369A** (Part number G1369-60001): introduced 10/2003.
- **G1369B** (Part number G1369-60002): introduced 03/2010, same features as G1369A, replaces G1369A, backward compatible.
- **G1369C** (Part number G1369-60012): introduced 04/2011, same features as G1369B plus support of "DHCP", replaces G1369A/B, backward compatible.

They have different DIP switches setting, so it is necessary to follow the description respective to proper type.

Detailed description of the possible LAN interface card settings can be found in the Agilent G1369A LAN Interface User Manual (Agilent P/N G1369-90000), Agilent G1369B LAN Interface User Manual (Agilent P/N G1369-90001) or Agilent G1369C LAN Interface User Manual (Agilent P/N G1369-90002).

To operate properly in a network environment, the LAN Interface must be configured with valid TCP/IP network parameters. These parameters are:

- IP address
- Subnet Mask
- Default Gateway

There are several different Init modes for setting the IP address of the **Agilent 1100/1200** systems selectable by dip switch settings on the LAN communication board.



| | SW 4 | SW 5 | SW 6 | SW 7 | SW 8 | Init Mode |
|-----------------|------|------|------|------|------|---------------|
| | OFF | OFF | OFF | OFF | OFF | Bootp |
| | OFF | OFF | ON | OFF | OFF | Bootp & Store |
| | OFF | ON | OFF | OFF | OFF | Using Stored |
| 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 | OFF | ON | ON | OFF | OFF | Using Default |
| | ON | OFF | OFF | OFF | OFF | DHCP |

Fig. 4: LAN card DIP Switches

Compared to the **G1369A** LAN Card, SW 7 and SW 8 must be always in OFF position on the **G1369B/C** LAN Card, otherwise the selected modes are not working.

3.2.1 Default settings

- The factory set "Using Default" option (SW5 ON and SW6 ON) uses fixed IP address 192.168.254.11. In case the 1100 is connected directly to PC, it is the recommended setting.
- For the LAN card in the PC use TCP/IP settings with a fixed IP address, for example:
 - IP address: 192.168.254.10
 - Subnet mask: 255.255.255.0
- *Note:* The last IP address section should be different from the Agilent 1100/1200 IP address.
 - When connected to a network, the address above should be assigned to the 1100 system (contact your LAN administrator).

3.2.2 Stored Settings

- When this address could not be used due to network constraints, it can be changed from the default settings by following procedure:
- Use the *Run* command from the Windows *Start* menu. Run the CMD.EXE with following commands:

Note: It is necessary to have Telnet client enabled. The status of Telnet client can be modified in the *Windows* settings.



Fig. 5: Windows 11 - Telnet client

• telnet 192.168.254.11 (default or stored address)

| Command Prompt × + ~ | - | | × |
|---|---|---|---|
| C:\>telnet 192.168.254.11 | | | |
| • IP 192.168.254.12 (desired IP address) | | | |
| | | ٥ | × |
| Agilent Technologies TalkToLab > ip 192.168.254.12 >_ | | | |

Quit



 After this switch off the Agilent 1100 and change the dip switch settings on the LAN card to "Using Stored" (SW5 ON and SW6 OFF).

Note: The stored address can be also changed using the **Handheld Controller** (G1323A/B).

3.2.3 Bootp Settings

The **Chemstation** usually uses the **bootp server** to assign an IP address to the **Agilent 1100** instruments. The DIP switches on the LAN card are *SW5 OFF* and *SW6 ON* or *OFF* in such case. Set the appropriate IP address according to the bootp manager settings in **Clarity Agilent ICF** configuration too.

3.2.4 DHCP Server

When the initialization mode "DHCP" is selected, the card tries to download the parameters from a DHCP Server. The parameters obtained become the active parameters immediately. Beside requesting the network parameters, the card also submits its hostname to the DHCP Server. The hostname equals the MAC address of the card.

Note: We do not recommend to use DHCP option in **Clarity**.

3.3 Description of LAN connector

The LAN interface board is installed usually in only one component of the **Agilent ICF** system. On others a cover plate is in its place.



Fig. 6: Back side of the Agilent 1100 and the LAN connector

Caution: Be careful that you connect the LAN cable to the **LAN Interface** and NOT to one of the CAN connections. The CAN bus uses 12-Volt signals, and a misconnection to the CAN bus may destroy network equipment on the other end of the cable.

3.4 Wiring

When using a system without autosampler or single modules (detectors, pumps) only, they need to be started using the Remote external event contact connector.

The connector is 9 pin Sub D Receptacle (Canon female) on the backside of the module, marked Remote. Use the Pin 1 to Pin 3 (Start) contacts to connect the injector. The pins 1 to 8 may be used to Stop the run alternatively.

Caution: Next to it is another connector of the same type marked RS232.

3.5 Clarity Configuration

| System Configuration | | | – 🗆 X |
|---|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| Setup Control Mod | lules | 5b Number of Instruments: | 2 |
| Name Used AS LC LC LC AS Sampler Isstru () Quat. Pump - Aux Instru Ax RID: RI Signal Instru GC CC CC CC | ment 1 ment 1 ment 1 | Instrument 1 Instrument 2 Name ICF - LC Instrument Type LC C Name Name Name | P Instrument 3 Instrument 4 |
| Balance Thermostat Yalve Fraction Collector Capillary Electrophoresis | | 7 ► Assertion ► L L ► ■ Detector ► ■ Detector ■ ■ Detector ■ ■ Column Comp. ■ ■ Nance | Agilent LC system by ICF Agilent LC system by ICF Agilent LC system by ICF Agilent LC system by ICF |
| | | Data Inputs & Outputs Ext. Start Dig. Input: LC Agle Ready Dig. Output: Miscellaneous Settings Units Setup | Device Number (8) nt LC system by ICF Lov |
| | | | |
| Add Remove About | Setup | (| K Cancel Help |
| Available Control Modules | | | - D X |
| | Installed Only F | Filter: All V Agilent LC (2) | |
| Name | Status Vendor (| Comment | Module Info |
| Aglient LC system by ICF | installed Aglient | Aglient LC system components supported by ICF (parts of | f 1100, 1200, 126 |
| LC 1100 System | installed Agient installed Agient | Agient LC system components supported by ICF (parts of 1100, 1200. | f 1100, 1200, 126 |
| Detector Set Agilent LC system by ICF Agilance | installed Agilent | Agilent LC system components supported by ICF (parts o | f 1100, 1200, 126 |
| G Agilent LC system by ICF | installed Agilent | Agilent LC system components supported by ICF (parts of | f 1100, 1200, 126 |
| Agilent LC system by ICF | installed Agilent | Agilent LC system components supported by ICF (parts of | f 1100, 1200, 126 Testing. |
| Capillary Electrophoresis | installed Agilent | Agilent LC system components supported by ICF (parts o | f 1100, 1200, 126 Testing. |
| add Carrel | | | Help |
| Auu Cancel | | | neip |

Fig. 7: System Configuration

Caution: Before you start **Clarity**, ensure there is not any other application or the **Agilent Handheld Controller** active and controlling the **Agilent** instruments.

- Start the Clarity station by clicking on the start the clarity station by clicking on the desktop.
- Invoke the System Configuration dialog accessible from the Clarity window using the System - Configuration... command.
- Press the Add button ① (See Fig. 7 on pg. 9.) to invoke the Available Control Modules dialog.
- You can specify the searching filter 2 to simplify the finding of the driver.
- Select the Agilent ICF for LC item and press the Add 3 button.

The ICF Setup dialog will appear.

| ilent LC system by ICF Setup (modified) | | - | | |
|--|--|-----------|-----|----|
| | Cutat. Pump (G1311A) Column Comp. (G131BA) RID (G1362A) Low Row Sampler (G1389A) > < Auto Configure Up Down | Configure | Cle | ar |
| Clarity Starts This Device | Turn OFF Pump on Shutdown | | | |
| Create a real time signal for external fraction collectors | Turn OFF Detector lamp on closing instrum | ent | | |
| Sequence Mode | Turn OFF Detector lamp on Shutdown | | | |
| Custom name | ОК | Cancel | He | lp |

Fig. 8: Agilent ICF Setup

- *Note:* Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.
- Note: The Custom name... button can be used to alter the name of the module. This change propagates to the module name in the Setup Control Modules ④ and in the Data Inputs & Outputs ⑧ sections of the System Configuration dialog. Default name is used when the field is left empty.
 - Click on the Auto Configure button in the ICF Setup dialog and the Automatic configuration parameters dialog is displayed for entering the connection

parameters:

| Connection settings | × |
|--------------------------|------|
| Connection settings | |
| IP Address 192.168. 2. 1 | |
| O Hostname | |
| | |
| OK Cancel | Help |

Fig. 9: Automatic configuration parameters dialog

• Fill in the *IP address* or *Hostname* of the Agilent system and press the *OK* button.

For more details about the options in this dialog, see the chapter "Agilent ICF Setup" on pg. 14.

- *Caution:* In case you configured any modules before using the *Auto Configure* function, they will be preserved in the configuration. Please remove obsolete modules manually.
 - Press the OK also in the ICF Setup dialog.

The **ICF** will appear in the Setup Control Modules list ④ of the System Configuration dialog.

- Change the Instrument Type (5) (a) on the desired Instrument tab (5) (b) to LC and drag the ICF item from the Setup Control Modules list on the left (4) to the Instrument tab on the right (6), or use the -> button (7).
- Set the Ext. Start Dig. Input (8) the system.
 - Default value "--" (8) . Clarity will be started by receiving start data from the Agilent ICF LC. Instrument.
 - Value "1" (3) will synchronize start of the analysis with the *Agilent ICF LC* autosampler's injection with **other** than Agilent ICF detector.

Caution: If you change the configuration of the **Agilent ICF** system (for example remove and add another instruments), the communication parameters like *IP address* will be lost and it is necessary to set it again.

Note: The configuration dialog of the **ICF** (<u>Agilent ICF Setup</u>) can be displayed any time by double-clicking on its icon or using the *Setup* button.

3.6 Installation Qualification of Agilent ICF

Agilent ICF is an external program developed by Agilent and for that reason it must be validated using its utility. If you have installed Clarity with Agilent ICF, the IQ is valid only if successful validation of ICF is attached.

The validation of ICF can be performed directly from the IQ Report.

Caution: When Clarity expects *Agilent ICF* is installed then **IQ** expects the same. If (due to any reason) the *Agilent ICF* installation is not found within Clarity, the *Installation Qualification Test* status is set by default to *FAILED*. To resolve this, it is necessary to re-install **Agilent ICF** through Clarity reinstallation and then perform **IQ** again.

| | | × |
|---|---|---|
| <u>F</u> ile <u>H</u> elp | | |
| Installation | Qualification Report | ^ |
| Date | 26.02.2024, 11:36 | |
| Serial number of application | No. 07776-087-08 | |
| User Code | Charles and Charles and Annual State of the | |
| Version of application | Clarity version 9.0.1.19 | |
| Build date of application | 10.10.2023, 13:33 | |
| Instruments | All | |
| Extensions | SST; GPC; PDA; EA; CE; MS; NGA; DHA; GCxGC; MS-TOF | |
| Controls | GC; LC; AS | |
| Certification file | C:\Clarity\Bin\iq.chk | |
| Checksum of cert. file | C0A775D69593EDE0 | |
| Date of cert. file | 10.10.2023, 15:26 | |
| User | lenkad | |
| System | Microsoft Windows 11 Professional version 10.0 (Build 22631) | |
| Acquisition and hardware device | s Key Rockey | |
| Core Files, Emb Files Show files list » | edded Components: Passed | |
| 3 rd Party Packag Agilent ICF: | r system. It is necessary to perform its validation separately <u>hare</u> . The result must be | |
| Checked by: | Signature: | > |

Click the link "here" ①, after that it is necessary to click *Run* in two pop-up windows. *Agilent Software Verification Tool* window will open. Select what report file type should be generated and define post-qualification actions. Click *Qualify* ② to run the IQ. The HTML reports are opened in the default browser if the *Open reports* option was enabled. Installed drivers and their versions are listed at the end of the report.

| | erification Tool B.01.01.013 | | - | | × |
|---|--|----------------------|---------|-----------|------|
| | | | | | Help |
| Reports to create | Report option | Post-qualification a | ction | | |
| HTML Report | Show OK files in report | Open reports (H | TML and | PDF only) | |
| PDF Report | | Exit | | | |
| XML Report | | | | | |
| Reports folder | | | | | |
| C:\SVReports\ | | | | Open | |
| - W Autent ICF | | | | | |
| Agilent IC Agilent Rap Agilent Rap | : F pid Control .NET apid Control .NET | | | | |

Fig. 10: Agilent Software Verification Tool

Address field of the generated report displays the location of the actual report.

| Date: | 09 May 2022 | Time: | 13:43:57 [UTC +02:00:00] | Host Name: PC-017 |
|-----------------------|---------------|-----------------------|--------------------------|----------------------------|
| Windows User Name : | samuel | Base Revision Number: | 3.1.17 | Product Name : Agilent ICF |
| Install Type: | N/A | Additional Packages: | Details | |
| ase Reference File Na | me : IQTRefIC | F.xml | | |

Fig. 11: ICF Report - PASS

4 Using the Agilent ICF

There are multiple places for setting the parameters of the **Agilent ICF for LC** in the **Clarity**:

- the Agilent ICF Setup dialog
- the Method Setup AS tab
- the Method Setup LC tab
- the Method Setup Acquisition tab.
- and the Method Setup PDA tab.

Caution: Before opening the *Instrument* window with configured **Agilent ICF** devices, ensure there is not any other PC connected to one of the Agilent's devices. Otherwise there will be raised an error during the connection.

4.1 Agilent ICF Setup

The ICF Setup dialog serves for configuring your Agilent instruments.

| gilent LC system by ICF Setup (modified) | | - | | × |
|---|--|--------|------|----|
| G:- Aglert 1100/1200/1260/1290 LC Iso, Pump Br, Pump - Quat, Pump - Duat, Pump - Prep, Pump - Prep, Pump - Sampler - Low Row Sampler - HP Sampler - Prep, Valve - WWD - RID - FLD - Low Row Valve - Roxbile Cube - Pump Valve Cluster | Court: Pump (G1311A) Column Comp. (G1316A) RID (G1362A) Low Row Sampler (G1389A) < Auto Configure Up Down | figure | Clea | IF |
| This Device Starts the Run in Clarity | Turn OFF Pump on closing instrument | | | |
| Clarity Starts This Device | Turn OFF Pump on Shutdown | | | |
| Create a real time signal for external fraction collectors | Turn OFF Detector lamp on closing instrument | | | |
| Sequence Mode | Turn OFF Detector lamp on Shutdown | | | |
| Custom name | OK Car | cel | Help | |

Fig. 12: ICF Setup

 Note:
 Press the F1 key to display the Agilent help with detailed description of the dialog. Each Agilent instrument controlled by the ICF library has its help.

 Caution:
 System Configuration is not fully synchronized with the Method Setup dialog, so

you can see some parameters there even if they are not configured on the **Instrument**. For example number of signals in FLD, DAD or MWD detectors, etc.

Automatic configuration

• Click on the *Auto Configure* button and a dialog is displayed for entering the connection parameters:

| Connection settings | | × | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|---------------|------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Connection settings | • | | | | | | | | | |
| IP Address | 192.168. 2. 1 | | | | | | | | | |
| O Hostname | O Hostname | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |
| ОК | Cancel | Help | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | |

Fig. 13: Automatic configuration parameters dialog

• Fill in the *IP address* or *Hostname* of the **Agilent** system and press the *OK* button.

Manual configuration

- Select a component from the list on the left side you want to add to your **Agilent** system.
- Click the *Right* button to add it to the configuration or the *Left* one if you intend to remove it.
- By clicking on the *Configure* button, you can display the setup of the respective instrument.

| Configure MWD | | × | | | | | | |
|-------------------|-----------------------|--------|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Communication | | | | | | | | |
| Device name | MWD | | | | | | | |
| Type ID | G1365A 👻 | | | | | | | |
| Serial number | | | | | | | | |
| Firmware revision | | | | | | | | |
| | Connection settings | | | | | | | |
| | Additional connection | | | | | | | |
| Ontions | | | | | | | | |
| Options | | | | | | | | |
| Help | ОК | Cancel | | | | | | |

Fig. 14: Example of configuring the MWD

| Connection settings | | | | | | | | | |
|---------------------|---------------|------|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Connection settings | ; | | | | | | | | |
| IP Address | 192.168. 2. 1 | | | | | | | | |
| O Hostname | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| ок | Cancel | Help | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Fig. 15: Automatic configuration parameters dialog

• Fill in the *IP address* or *Hostname* of the **Agilent** system and press the *OK* button.

Note: In each dialog you can press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

This Device Starts the Run in Clarity / Clarity Starts This Device

This radiobutton enables to start the analysis run from the **Clarity**. With *This Device Starts the Run in Clarity* checked, the device is started prior to **Clarity** by its front button or autosampler connected to this device and passes the start to **Clarity**. When *Clarity Starts This Device* is checked, **Clarity** is started prior to this device by separately wired autosampler, Start button in Single Run or different device and then starts this device.

Note: The *This Device Starts the Run in Clarity* option is checked by default.

Create a real time signal for external fraction collectors

This option turns on an additional real time signal during the acquisition run which can be used for fraction collectors to response on the signal immediately.

Turn OFF Pump on closing instrument

If checked, all pumps connected to the instrument will be stopped when the user closes the Instrument window.

Turn OFF Pump on Shutdown

If checked, all pumps connected to the instrument will be stopped when a Shutdown event happens, either from error caused by **Clarity** or other modules, by **Event Table** or by pressing the *Shutdown* button in **Device Monitor** or other windows.

Turn OFF Detector lamp on closing instrument

If checked, all detectors connected to the instrument will be stopped when the user closes the **Instrument** window.

Turn OFF Detector lamp on Shutdown

If checked, all detectors connected to the instrument will be stopped when a Shutdown event happens, either from error caused by **Clarity** or other modules, by **Event Table** or by pressing the *Shutdown* button in **Device Monitor** or other windows.

Sequence Mode

If checked, it enables to use high throughput operations of the autosampler. Depending on the type of the sampler and functions it supports, this either means using "Full Sequence Download" functionality (working with optimized sequences of up to 60 samples) or enabling to use the *Enable Optimization* functionality on Method Setup - AS tab.

4.2 Method Setup

Possibility of displaying and parameters of the <u>Method Setup - AS</u>, <u>Method Setup -</u> <u>LC</u> and <u>Method</u> <u>Setup - Acquisition</u> dialogs depend on the <u>Agilent</u> ICF Configuration.

| Method Setup Default1 - #5: 05.03.2024 16:22:55 | | - D X |
|--|--|--|
| New Open Save Save as Report setup Audit tral Se | ernall | |
| Select Detector DAD: Signal A 🗸 Carabled | | |
| | | DAD (G1315A) |
| Signals | Advanced | |
| Acquire Wavelength Bandwidth Reference Reference | Spectrum | |
| Signal A Image: 220 ± 4 ± 100 ± 100 ± nm Signal B 224 ± 4 ± 300 ± 100 ± nm Signal C 210 ± 4 ± 300 ± 100 ± nm Signal C 210 ± 4 ± 300 ± 100 ± nm Signal C 220 ± 4 ± 300 ± 100 ± nm | Store : None Range from: 190 : Step: 2.0 ; | • 10 400 : nm |
| Signal E 280 ; 4 ; 360 ; 100 ; nm | Analog Output | |
| Peakwidth | Output 1: | Output 2: |
| > 0.1 min (2 s response time) (2.5 Hz) | Zero Offset: 5 % Attenuation: 1000 v mAU | Zero Offset: 5 7% Attenuation: 1000 v mAU |
| Stoptime Posttime | Margin for negative Absorbance | Slit |
| As Pump/Injector O 1.00 ; min O 1.00 ; min | 100 : mAU Autobalance | 4 nm |
| | Prerun | UV Lamp |
| | Postrun | Uis Lamp |
| | Timetable (empty) | |
| Event Table AS LC Measurement Acquisition PDA Thermostat In | ntegration PDA Method Calculation Advanced | |
| R OK Cancel | | Load Method Sgnd Method |

Fig. 16: Load Method - Method Setup

You can load the whole method from the configured **Agilent ICF** system by clicking on the *Load Method* button \bigcirc .

Be aware that *Load Method* is does not have to be supported by the other control modules even if they are configured on the *Instrument*.

Caution: Method parameters can't be changed during running analysis.

4.2.1 Method Setup - AS

| Method Setup Default1 - #5; 05.03.2024 16:22:55 | — D X |
|---|--|
| New Open Save Save as Report setup Audit trail Set | drimethod by e-mail |
| Select Sampler Sampler Sampler Brabled | |
| | Sampler (G1313A) |
| Injection | Advanced Auxiliary |
| Needle wash Enable Needle Wash Location: | Draw speed: 200 . juLmin Eject speed: 200 . juLmin Draw position: 0.0 . mm |
| Stoptime Posttime | High throughput |
| As PumpiNo Limit Off 1.00 : min Inin | Enable Optimization 20 0.00 minutes after Injection Prefetch Vial Overtap Injection Cycle |
| Event Table AS LC Measurement Acquisition PDA Thermostat In | tegration PDA Method Calculation Advanced |
| Cancel | Load Method Send Method |

Fig. 17: Method Setup - AS

Note: Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

- Select the *Sampler* or the *Pretreatment* tab ① to configure respective function of your sampler.
- Enable Optimization ② option in the High throughput section is correctly operational only if option Sequence Mode in the Agilent ICF Setup is checked.

Note: Activating a pretreatment (injector program) replaces the standard injection cycle.

4.2.2 Method Setup - LC

| Method Setup Default1 - #7; 06.03.2024 11:37:52 | | | | | - 0 | × |
|---|----------------------|-------------------------------------|--|----------------|-------------|-----|
| New Open Save Save as Report setup Audt trail Send m | tethod by Help Help | | | | | |
| Select LC Binary Pump 1 Select | | | | | | |
| | _ | | Bina | ry Pump (G1312 | (A) | |
| Flow | Advanced 2 | | | | | |
| 0.000 mL/min | Timetable (empty) | | | | | |
| | 3 | | | function c | entric view | |
| Solvents X Image: Control of the second sec | Time [min] A | [%] B [%] Flow [mL/ 100.0 0.0 | Max. Pressure Limit [bar] 0.000 400.00 | | | |
| Pressure Limits | | | | | | |
| Min: 0.00 ‡ bar Max: 400.00 ‡ bar | | | | | | |
| Stoptime Posttime | | | | | | |
| As trijector/No Limit Off Init Init Init Init Init Init Init Init | | | | | | |
| | Add | Remove | Clear All | Clear Empty | | |
| | Cut | Сору | Paste | Shift Times | 0.00 🛟 r | min |
| Event Table AS LC Measurement Acquisition PDA Thermostat FC | Integration PDA Meth | od Calculation Adva | nced | | | |
| Gancel | | | | Load Method | Send Method | hod |

Fig. 18: Method Setup - LC

Note: Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

- Select a pump 1 if you have configured more than one on your instrument.
- For advanced setting of your pumps, click the Advanced 2 row.
- **Caution:** Agilent LC Control is independent on the LC Gradient tab in the Clarity. The composition of gradient and flow presets for Agilent pumps has to preset in the *Timetable* section ③ . If there are configured other the gradient pumps (from different vendor) on the Instrument their operation would be controlled by values given in the *LC Gradient* tab. These two mentioned gradients would then performed simultaneously and independently during analysis. If there is configured any other Auxiliary pump on the Instrument its presets would be inserted in independent table of *LC* tab. Selection of the control presets for respective pump is done using ①.

4.2.3 Method Setup - Acquisition

| Method Setup Default1 - #7; 06.03.2024 11:37:52 | — 🗆 X |
|--|-----------------------------------|
| New Open Save Save as Peport setup Audit trail Send method by e-mail | |
| Select Detector DAD: Signal A 1 C Enabled | |
| | DAD (G1315A) |
| Signals 4 Advanced | |
| Acquire Wavelength Bandwidth Reference Reference Spectrum Spectrum | |
| Stonel A (3) 250 - 4 - 360 - 100 - mm | • |
| Signal B 254 () 4 () 360 () 100 () nm Range from: 190 () | to 400 🗘 nm |
| Signal C 210 ; 4 ; 360 ; 100 ; nm Step: 2.0 ; | nm |
| Signal D 230 0 4 0 360 0 100 mm Analog Output | |
| Output 1: | Output 2: |
| Peakwidth Zero Offset: 5 * % | Zero Offset 5 * % |
| > 0.1 min (2 s response time) (2.5 Hz) Attenuation: 1000 MAU | Attenuation: 1000 - mAU |
| Stoptime Posttime Margin for pegative Absorbance | Slit |
| | 4 v nm |
| | |
| Autobalance | Lamps on required for acquisition |
| V Prerun | UV Lamp |
| Postrun | Vis Lamp |
| | |
| ▷ Timetable (empty) (5) | |
| Event Table AS LC Measurement Acquisition PDA Thermostat FC Integration PDA Method Calculation | Advanced |
| Cancel | Load Method Send Method |

Fig. 19: Method Setup - Acquisition (Agilent ICF)

Select the detector ① you want to configure.

Make sure the detector/signal is enabled or disabled both in *Method Setup* (2) header and signals setting in the *Acquisition* (3) tab.

Note: Disabling or enabling of individual signals of each configured module has to be done in the *Signal* section ④ of each configured module *Acquisition* tab. Disabling of acquisition of any signal of any configured module is not sufficient just to uncheck *Enabled* checkbox ②.

For setting up the time table, click the Timetable ⁽⁵⁾ are to display it in the window.

Caution: The configuration in the Agilent ICF Setup window and in this dialog is not fully

synchronized. It means, that in this dialog you can configure signals or spectra even if they are not configured in the <u>System Configuration</u> dialog. Always use only those signals and spectra you configured in the <u>System Configuration</u> dialog. *Note:* Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

4.2.4 Method Setup - PDA

| ethod Setu | p Default1 - # | ¥7; 06.03.2024 | 11:37:52 | | | | | | |
|----------------------|----------------|------------------|----------------------------|------------------------|--------------------------|---------------------------|------------------------|-------------|-----|
| New Op | ben Save | Save as | Report setup | Audit trail | Send method by e-mail | ? Help | | | |
| lect PDA | | DAD: Spectru | m | Enabled | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | DAD (G1315A |) | |
| <u>S</u> ignals | | | | | Advance | d | | | |
| | Acquire Wav | elength Bandwid | th Reference Wavelength | Reference Bandwidth | Spectrum | | | | |
| Signal A | V | 250 📫 4 📫 | 360 ; | 100 📜 nm | | Store : None | • |] | |
| Signal B | 2 | 254 🗧 4 🕂 | 360 ; | 100 ‡ nm | F | Range from: 190 💲 | to 400 🗘 |] nm | |
| Signal C Signal D | | 210 1 4 1 | 360 0 | 100 ; nm 100 ; nm | | Step: 2.0 1 | nm | | |
| Signal E | | 280 ; 4 ; | 360 ; | 100 🗘 nm | Analog Out | put | | | |
| | | | | | | Output 1: | Output 2 | - | |
| Peakwidth | | | | | Zero Offs | et: 5 🛟 % | Zero Offset: | 5 * % | |
| | > 0.1 min (2 | s response time) | (2.5 Hz) | • | Attenuatio | n: 1000 🔻 mAU | Attenuation: 1000 | ▼ m | AU |
| Stoptime | | 1 | Posttime | | Margin for | negative Absorbance | Slit | | |
| 🔘 As | Pump/Injector | | Off | | | 100 📫 mAU | 4 | ▼ nm | |
| 0 | 1.00 | ; min | 0 | 1.00 🔅 min | Autobalance | | I some on required for | aquisition | |
| | | | | | | | | acquisition | |
| | | | | | | strun | Vis Lamp | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Timetabl | e (empty) | | | |
| vent Table | AS LO | C Measurement | Acquisition P | DA Thermostat | FC Integrati | on PDA Method Calculation | Advanced | | |
| | Grand | | | | | | | Courd Marth | |
| | Cancel | | | | | | Loau method | send Meth | 100 |

Fig. 20: Method Setup - PDA (Agilent ICF)

The **PDA** tab is present where there is configured PDA detector. The settings are in this table are fully synchronized with the settings in the <u>Method Setup - Acquisition</u> tab. Therefore there is no difference if the method parameters for the PDA detector are set in this tab or in the <u>Method Setup - Acquisition</u> tab.

Note: Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

4.2.5 Method Setup - FC

| Method Setup Default1 - #7; 06.03.2024 11:37:52 | | | | | | | | × |
|--|-----------------------------|----------------|----------------|--|------------|-------------------|--------------------|-----|
| New Open Save Save as Report setup Audit tra | il Send method by e-mail | ? Help | | | | | | |
| Select FC Fraction Collector V | abled | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Fraction C | ollector (G1364C) | | |
| Fraction Trigger Mode | | ▲ Timetable (| empty) 1 | | | | | |
| Off | | Time [min] | Function | | Parameter | | | |
| O Peak-based max. peak duration | u5 🗘 min | | | | | | | |
| O Time-based with number of fractions | 1.0 | | | | | | | |
| O Time-based with timeslices 0. | 10 🗧 min | | | | | | | |
| Peak Detector | | | | | | | | |
| Up Down | Upper | | | | | | | |
| Detector Unit Mode Slope Slope Thres (/s) (/s) | hold Threshold | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Fraction is collected when a peak is detected by | | | | | | | | |
| O all peak detectors | | | | | | | | |
| at least one peak detector | | | | | | | | |
| Stoptime Posttime | | | 0 | C1 | | | | |
| As Pump/Injector Off | | Ann | Conv | Clear all | | | | |
| O 1.00 ; min O | 1.00 🛟 min | Cut | Copy | Fasid | | | | |
| Controlle 40 10 Management Application 201 Theorem | | Advanced | (2) | t and the second se | | | | |
| Event rable AS LC measurement Acquisition PDA Then | nostat FC Integrati | ion MUA Method | Calculation Ac | ivanced | | | | |
| Cancel | | | | | | Load Method | S <u>e</u> nd Meti | hod |

Fig. 21: Method Setup - FC

Note: Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

- *Timetable* ① is used to program changes in the fraction collector parameters during the analysis.
- For advanced setting of your fraction collector, click the *Advanced* ⁽²⁾ row.
- *Note:* The collected fractions are displayed in the resulting chromatogram as shown in the image bellow. Table containing the Vial number, Volume, Start, and End Time for each fraction is displayed on *ICF Fraction Collector Result* tab (a).



Fig. 22: Chromatogram - FC

4.2.6 Method Setup - Advanced

| thod Setup Default1 | - #11; 06.03.20 | 24 11:57:4 | 3 | | | | | | \times |
|--|------------------|-------------|----------|---------------|--------------------------|-----------|--|--------|----------|
| Vew Open Sav | e Save as | • Report | setup | Rudit trail | Send method by e-mail | ? Help | | | |
| nmon for all detectors | | | | | | | | | |
| Subtraction | | | | | User Variable | s | | | |
| Chromatogram | [None] | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Variable 1 | | | | |
| Matching | No Change | | | ~ | Name | | MethodUserVar 1 | | |
| | <u>S</u> et | | None | • | | | - | _ | |
| | | | | | Value | | 0 | | |
| Column Calculations | | | | | | | | | |
| Unretain | ed Time | 0.0000 | [min] | | Variable 2 | | | | |
| onectan | | | _ Lined | | Name | | Method IserVar2 | | |
| Column L | ength. | 50.0000 | [mm] | | | | The difference of the letter o | _ | |
| | | Momente | | | Value | | 0 | | |
| | C Erom Mid | Hb at E09/ | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | Variable 3 | | | | |
| | Auxiliary Signal | | S | tore | Name | | Marks of the other D | | |
| 1 Pressure - Binary P | Pump | | | | Nome | | Methoduservara | | |
| 2 Flow - Binary Pump |) | | | | Value | | 0 | | |
| 3 Solvent Ratio A - B | linary Pump | | | | | | | | |
| 4 Solvent Ratio B - B | inary Pump | | | | | | | | |
| 5 Direction of Piston | A - Binary Pump | | | | | | | | |
| 6 Direction of Piston | B - Binary Pump | | | | | | | | |
| 2 Dight Temperature - 9 Dight Temperature - | - Column Comp. | | | H | | | | | |
| 9 Delay Sensor - Fra | ction Collector | | | | | | | | |
| 10 Ontical Unit Tempe | rature - RID | | | 8 | | | | | |
| 11 Diode Balance - RI | D | | | Π | | | | | |
| 12 Polarity - RID | | | | | | | | | |
| 13 Diode 1 - RID | | | | | | | | | |
| 14 Diode 2 - RID | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| vent Table AS | LC Measurem | ent Acquisi | tion PDA | Thermosta | EC Integratio | n PDA | Method Calculatio | n Adva | nced |
| ALL INDIA MO | Cosuleili | ACQUIST | FUA | - Incolliosta | i i uncegiau | AL PORT | - N MA COLUIOUU | - Auva | I ICCU |
| | | | | | | | | | |

Fig. 23: Method Setup - Advanced

Agilent ICF for LC provides the pump flow and pressure auxiliary signals for use in **Clarity**. To save the auxiliary signals into each chromatogram measured according to the given method, check the particular checkbox in the lower section of the **Method Setup - Advanced** dialog.

4.3 Device Monitor

The *Device Monitor* window can be invoked by the *Device Monitor* command from the *Analysis* menu or using the **Device Monitor** icon in the *Instrument* window.

You may use *(inclusion)* icon for accessing *Device Monitor* from all **Clarity** windows. For the **Agilent ICF**, it displays the states of configured **Agilent** system and enables the user to monitor and/or change states of this **Agilent** system.



Fig. 24: Device Monitor

Button *Configuration* allows to enter and modify configuration of some modules, mostly their trays, directly from the *Device Monitor*. This feature is supported only for selected modules. Modifications of configuration may cause that method might need an adaptation before its use in analysis. The *Configuration* feature is not accessible during running analysis or running *Sequence*.

Note: Press the *F1* key to display the **Agilent help** with detailed description of the dialog.

Note: Tabs on right side of the *Device Monitor* allowing setting collection of diagnostic information are displayed only when **Clarity** is started under Administrator Windows account. For other Windows accounts, when running **Clarity**, there are displayed fewer tabs on the right side of the *Device Monitor*.

Agilent ICF for LC

| Configuration | | | | | | | | × |
|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|---|--------------------|--|--|---------|-----|-----|
| Fraction Collector | | | | | | | | |
| Tray Configuration | | | | | | | | |
| Tray A: No tray | Tray B | No tray | | Tray | C: No tray | | | |
| Wellplates | | | | | | | | |
| Plate Typ | e Left Back <no plate=""></no> | * | Plate Type Right B | ack <no plat<="" td=""><td>e> 💌</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></no> | e> 💌 | | | |
| Plate Typ | e Left Front <no plate=""></no> | * | Plate Type Right F | ront <no plat<="" td=""><td>e> •</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></no> | e> • | | | |
| | | treat 384 pla | ates as 4 x 96 | | | | | |
| Collection Order | | | | Cal | lastian Mada | | | |
| | 100 | _ | | COL | Discrete fractions | | | |
| Row by row | UUI | Shortest path by cr | olumn | | O Continous flow | | | |
| titt O Column by col | um 5 | Shortest path by rr | w | Add | litional Fraction Locations | | | |
| 1111 0 000000000 | | 0 0.00.00000000000000000000000000000000 | | | None | Ŧ | | |
| Reserved Locations | | | Peak Detector De | elay Volumes | | | | |
| | | | Detector | Serial | Delay Volume [µl] | | | |
| Row(s) | | | | | | | | |
| Column(s) | | | | | | | | |
| Single Location(s) | | | | | | | | |
| Needle Movement | | | Linked Pump | | | | | |
| | | | | (Data d | | | | |
| O into location | Depth | 0.0 0 mm | no | t linked | • | | | |
| above location | Distance | 0.0 🛟 mm | Tube | | | | | |
| O contact control | Distance | 0.0 🗘 mm | | Tu | ube Volume 0.0 | 0 () mL | | |
| | | | | т | ube Height | 0 🔅 mm | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| Help | | | | | | ОК | Can | cel |

Fig. 25: Configuration from Device Monitor

ICF Device Monitor is interactive. Right-click on a particular device, like *Sampler*, *MWD*, etc. and a pop-up menu with corresponding commands is displayed.



Fig. 26: Device Monitor - Context Menu

Caution: To enable the commands in the context menu, it is necessary to get the *Clarity Instrument* to status *No method sent*. This can be performed by clicking on the *Shut Down* button in the toolbar.

4.4 Select Vial Location

In the **Sequence** window, it is also possible to interactively select the vial location instead of typing it manually. Click on the drop-down button **S** in the SV or EV column to display it.



Fig. 27: Select Vial Location

5 Troubleshooting

When the remedy for some problem cannot be discovered easily, the recording of communication between **Clarity** and *Agilent ICF* control module can significantly help the **DataApex** support to discover the cause of the problem. The recording can be found in the **Clarity** installation directory (C:\CLARITY \CFG\DEBUG_ LOGS\PGMLOG by default). Older communication log files are removed and replaced by newer ones, therefore, it is necessary to copy out the communication log which was collected during the problem occurrence soon after it happened.

In case you cannot establish communication with Agilent instruments, please review the following issues:

Check the network connection using the Ping command

The problem in communication between **Clarity** and Agilent instruments may be caused by wrong network configuration, firewall preventing the connection, etc. Run the command line in Windows (for example by pressing the **Windows key** together with the **R** key, in the displayed *Run* window type *cmd* and press *Enter*).

In the command line type ping <ip-adress-of-instrument> or <hostname> and press *Enter*. The *IP Adress (hostname)* is the same you entered in the ICF Setup dialog.

Agilent Lab Advisor or handheld controller must be turned off

When controlling Agilent instruments from **Clarity**, please make sure any other application or controller is not connected to those instruments.

Use Lab Advisor to check the functionality of the instruments

In case you encounter some problems in communication between **Clarity** and Agilent instruments, turn off the **Clarity** and try to connect to these instruments using the **Agilent Lab Advisor**.

Agilent Diagnostic Information

There is an option to obtain additional information on Agilent devices using the **Agilent Lab Advisor** (such as the valve switching counter, lamp on-time, lamp ignition counter and others). These options are not implemented in **Agilent ICF** therefore they cannot be accessed through **Clarity**.

5.1 Specific Problems

Clarity can't be run and it displays "Agilent ICF is not installed correctly." message.

Cause: The cause of the problem is that the Agilent ICF has a different version than expected by Clarity. It can typically happen when other software also using Agilent ICF decides to reinstall it. Thus next time Clarity expects different version than is installed.



Fig. 28: An Agilent ICF error during Clarity start

Solution: Solution is to reinstall Agilent ICF during **Clarity** installation. Follow steps described in the chapter **"Installation procedure"** on pg. **3**.

ICF problems during installation or operation.

Cause: The cause of the problem might be that *Microsoft*.*NET Framework* is not enabled. Agilent ICF requires *Microsoft*.*NET Framework* enabled for its function.



Fig. 29: Turn Windows features on or off - Windows 11

| Programs and Features | | | | | - | | × |
|--|--------------------------|----------|-------|---|-----------|-----|--------|
| $\leftarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow \blacksquare \land \land \land$ | II C > Programs and | ~ | С | Search Programs and Features | | | م |
| Control Panel Home View installed updates | Uninstall or char | nge a pi | ogram |) e list and then click Uninstall. Chang | e or Rer | air | |
| Turn Windows features on or off | Organiza - Uninstall | /Change | nom u | e list and then ellek onlinstall, enang | c, or neg | = - | |
| Install a program from the network | Name | ^ Change | | Publisher | | = ` | Instal |
| | Clarity 0 0 0 75-Dralimi | nan/ | | Data Anev | | | 27.06 |

Fig. 30: Location of Turn Windows features on or off in Windows 11

- Solution: Check if Microsoft .NET Framework is enabled in Turn Windows features on or off dialog. If Microsoft .NET Framework is not enabled enable it. Turn Windows features on or off dialog is accessible in Control Panel window under section Programs in its subsection Programs and Features.
- *Note: Microsoft .NET Framework* version 3.5 is not needed. The required version 4.7.2 or higher can be only disabled in Windows 8.1 or newer, where it is installed with system updates.

Agilent LC system by ICF Sampler (SN xxx): Gyyyy:xxx - Reply error during COSY list execution

Cause: Most common cause is that next injection was called too soon after the previous one. This can be caused by using *Skip Vial* command soon after analysis start or by running extremely short acquisitions in *Sequence*. Generally, this error can occur when the sampler receives new request while processing the previous one.

Problems regarding specific control modules.

Cause: Because the control is realized using the ICF which is in *TESTING* state, some issues may arise during the use. Known issues are described in the table below.

| Туре | Description of the issue |
|----------------------|--|
| 7100 CE | Not supported so far (there is no demand for this control). |
| FLD detector balance | FLD performs no balance (contrary to DAD/VWD detectors). FLD always measures the actual concentration in the cell (by Agilent design). |